United Nations N FIFTH COMMITTEE, 723rd
GENERALRocCcrm" 71 MEETING

ASSEMBLY 5 canas

Monday, 19 October 1959,

at 10.45 a.m.

FOURTEENTH SESSION Cmmen ARARY w
Official Records cren =T NEW YORK
CONTENTS mittee of Experts, and another Professional officer
Page should be appointed to the ECLA information service.
Agenda item 52: In addition, an officer might be seconded to one of the
Public information activities of the United existing centres who would tour the area, at least once
Nations: report of the Secretary-General a year, in order to make contact with Latin-American
(CONEINUE) » v o o e e v e e e oe s aeen e 77 non-governmental organizations and encourage them

to set up information programmes. That was the mini-
mum for obtaining satisfactory results at the regional

Chairman; Mr, Jiff NOSEK (Czechoslovakia). level.,

3. A study of the distribution of staff amongthe infor-
In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Urabe (Japan) mation centres showed that there were twenty-three
Vice-Chairman, took the Chair. Professional officers in Europe, one in North America,
twelve in Asia and the Far East, four in the Middle
AGENDA ITEM 52 East and Africa and eight in Latin America. If the
posts of regional radio and film officers were added,
Public information activities of the United Nations: report the total was fifty-three, of whom only twenty-six were
of the Secretary-General (A/4122, A/4170, A/C.5/L.573) in the under-developéd countries, althoughthose coun-
{continued) tries constituted more than two-thirds of the member-
ship of the United Nations. He wondered whether it was
1. Mr. CARRIZOSA (Colombia) recalled that at the really necessary, for example, to appoint an officer to
thirteenth session the Colombian delegation had sup- Washington, the capital of a country in which edu-
ported the measures recommended by the Committee cational activities were highly developed and non-

of Experts on United Nations Public Information,!/in~ governmental organizations highly active,

cluding increased decentralization of the information
services, more frequent recourse to the assistance of
governmental and non-governmental organizations,
private persons and institutions of various kinds, and
the establishment of new information centres with
more opportunity for local initiative. In resolutions
1086 (XI) and 1335 (XII), the General Assembly had
emphasized the importance of the operations and
effectiveness of the information centres and the need
to set up others in the new Member States. The Latin-
American States, which were anxious to publicize the
purposes and activities of the United Nations, had
often opposed any reduction in the funds set aside for
information activities; on the other hand, they had
always stressed the need to ensure the maximum of
effectiveness at the lowest possible cost. Effectiveness
depended primarily on wise planning.

4. In connexion with the reorganization of OPI, it was
interesting to compare the recommendations of the
Committee of Experts with what had actuallybeen done
to put them into effect. The Committee had proposed
that a Bureau of Planning and Co-ordination shouldbe
set up in order to plan and implement the information
policy of the Office of Public Information. The Bureau
was to consist of six sections, including four regional
sections headed by senior Professional officers with
special knowledge of the regions whichthey would have
to serve. Unfortunately, as it was at present, the
structure of OPI did not conform to that principle:
the External Relations Division had not the necessary
authority for planning and implementation; moreover,
it was hampered by the limitations (funds or staff)
which might be imposed on the two other divisions;
lastly, its internal organization was basedontechnical

2. The Secretary-General's report (A/4122) made no and not geographical qualifications. Any question of
reference to the question of the geographical location equitable geographical distribution apart, it was un-
of the new centres; nevertheless, much still remained deniable that the needs and problems of the different
to be done in that respect, as the example of Latin regions of the world should be taken into account in
America showed. The twenty Member States in that drawing up the programme of work and allocating the
region possessed four centres to which seven Pro- funds obtained. Now that there was no longer any
fessional officers had been posted; there was also an "regional sensitivity", the needs of Latin America or
officer in Mexico City, responsible for editing the of other under-developed areas had not been taken
Revista de las Naciones Unidas, and a Press officer into account during the past year. There had been no
with ECLA at Santiago. However great the professional improvement worth mentioning in that field. Infor-
skill of the persons concerned, there were too few of mation media in Latin America had continuedto receive
them to obtain even fair results. The obvious good will the usual services, and the information whichthey had
of Governments, non-governmental organizations and disseminated in their turn had been merely routine.
information media showed that, if only there could be The extraordinary publicity whichthe Colombian Press
greater decentralization, satisfactory results couldbe had given to seminars on the participation of women
achieved. New centres should therefore be set up, in in public life, held at Bogot4, was an exception.

d ith dati -
w with the recommendations of the Com 5. The best means of avoiding the waste of money and

1/See Official Records of the General Assembly, Thirteenth Session, effort resulting from planning which was too general
Annexes, agenda 1tem 55, document A /3928. in character would be to set up a group of officers to

77 A/C.5/SR.723



78 General Assembly — Fourteenth Session — Fifth Committee

study and supply regularly the real needs of regions
which they knew well, and to obtain tangible results
with the assistance of information media, centres,
non-governmental organizations, educational institu=
tions and private persons. For the four major regions
of the world, there might be eight suchofficers, headed
by a Director and an Assistant Director, i.e. ten
officers in all instead of the fifteen envisaged in the
manning table of the External Relations Division. The
five officers left over could be seconded to new infor-
mation centres, where they would be assisted by local
staff. The same would be done in the other divisions.
That would be a beginning of decentralization and one
means of strengthening the external services. That
was a practical proposal which would not involve any
additional expenditure.

6. In regard to the visual services, the Secretary-
General had said (A/4122, paras. 26 and 27) that the
years 1959 and 1960 would be regarded as transitional
years; in 1959, six short films would be produced for
the United Nations and some of the specialized agen-
cies. In 1958 and 1959, the film services had produced
two large-scale films, "Blue Vanguard" and "Power
Among Men", the latter being certainly one of the
longest documentary films ever made. Thus, practi-
cally the entire resources of the section had been
devoted to experiments whose success with the public
at large was doubtful. He would like to know what the
production of the two films had cost, and what their
commercial distribution had brought in. Moreover, the
Committee of Experts had attached great importance
in its report to co-operation between Governments and
OPI in producing information films. There was nothing
in the Secretary-General's report to indicate that those
recommendations had been followed in practice. The
general principle of co-operation with Governments
had been set forthin General Assembly resolution 1335
(XIII); but neither the Colombian Government nor the
Colombian delegation had so far been approached
either by OPI or by the information centre at Bogot4.

7. To sum up, the Secretary-General's report did not
offer any tangible proof that progress had been made
in the direction indicated in resolution 1335 (XIII).
That was because there was no planning body within
OPI and because the real needs of the different regions
of the world, in particular the under-developed regions,
were not being systematically examined. In the senior
posts, geographical representation was not balanced:
in the senior Professional category and higher cate-
gories there was no one from Latin America, Asia or
Africa. Nevertheless the Committee of Experts had
said in paragraph 227 (e) that it attached great im-
portance to ensuring that the OPI reflected broad
cultural regions in its staffing pattern.

8. In conclusion, he was in favour of taking up the
Secretary-General's proposaly to set up a consultative
body to advise him in matters such as the usefulness
and suitability of various projects and, where neces~-
sary, to suggest modifications in the programme. The
report submitted to the Committee (A/4122) disclosed
a situation which made the establishment of such a
body justifiable, not to say imperative.

9. Mr. HSUEH (China) said that the Secretary-General
had made laudable efforts to implement General As-
sembly resolution 1335 (XIII). There were, however,
certain measures outlined in the report, and some
others, which should be given greater consideration.

2/Ibid., document A/3945, para. 17,

It was too early to evaluate the actual effects of what
had already been done but the Secretary-General would
no doubt keep the Fifth Committee and the General
Assembly informed.

10. The upward trend of public information expenses
($137,600 more than in 1959) made it increasingly
difficult to give effect to paragraph 278 of the report
of the Committee of Experts, where $4.5 million was
considered a reasonable basis for planning. Even
allowing for M"uncontrollable" costs, the fact was that
over the past few years public information expenses
had gone beyond the desirable ceiling. As the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions
pointed out in its report (A /4170, para. 53) "an effective
information programme could be carried out at a cost
below the present level". His delegation was therefore
prepared to support the United Kingdom proposal
(722nd meeting) for a ceiling of $5 million for the public
information budget for 1960.

11. Savings could still be effected without impairing
the effectiveness of OPlactivities, For instance, under
present arrangements, a director of an information
centre might be called upon to make a long journey
every year for various reasons, such as meetings of
directors in New York or home leave. One method of
reducing expenses would be to provide for the rotation
of directors of centres only between Headquarters and
the field, and not betweentwo centres. It would not then
be necessary perhaps to hold biennial directors' meet-
ings at Headquarters.

12. Some types of savings, however, were not at all
justified by the results. The Chinese language radio
staff in OPI had been reduced from five to two, which
seriously impaired the quality of the Chinese radio
programmes without any significant savings in the
budget.

13. The Secretary-General's report made no mention
of the interne and fellowship programme in connexion
with which the Committee of Experts had made valuable
and helpful suggestions astothe criteriafor the choice
of candidates. His Government attached special im~
portance to those programmes and hoped the criteria
adopted would be adhered to scrupulously. If additional
criteria should be deemed necessary, they should be
submitted to Member States and to the Committee for
examination. He also wished to call attention to the
requirement for consultations with the Governments
concerned in regard to the choice of candidates and
stressed that such consultations should always be held.

14, His delegation was glad to note the importance
attached to radio programmes and photographic exhi-
bitions, which were wide-spread information media;
with regard to television, a medium still restrictedin
scope, programmes could be developed later, when
other more urgent projects had been financed.

15. The establishment of more information centres
should receive priority consideration, especially in
regions not covered by existing centres. A redeploy-
ment of Headquarters staff would enable new centres
to be established without appreciable additional cost.
At present, out of a total OPI staff of 389, only 166
worked for information centres. In addition to that
decentralization measure the services of Secretariat
staff from liaison offices or area representatives of
the specialized agencies might be utilized. Therefore,
it should not be too difficult to establish new centres
where such services already existed.



723rd meeting—19 October 1959 79

16. On the whole, the Secretary-General's report was
an encouraging one, and his delegation would follow
with interest any future efforts to extend and improve
public information services.

17. Mr. FEKKES (Netherlands) said that the Com-
mittee must decide now whether to continue putting
arbitrary ceilings to public information expenditure
or to accept the Secretary-General's policy of budget
stabilization. As far as he could make out, the USSR
draft resolution (A/C.5/1.573) andthe United Kingdom
proposal reverted to the system of fixing arbitrary
ceilings. Since that method had not been very success=-
ful in the past, his delegation was inclined to accept
the Secretary-General's point of view. Nevertheless,
if assurance could be given-that the Secretary-
General's programme could be carried out with a
budget of $5 million, that sum being regardednot as a
ceiling but as the result of a normal reduction of the
fund requested, his delegation could support the United
Kingdom proposal.

18. The report submitted to the Committee must be
regarded as a first step along the road indicated in
resolution 1335 (XIII); the programme outlined in the
report was sound, but it was to be hoped that future
reports would give fuller and more concrete details on
the practical measures which might be taken and the
possible saving to be effected thereby. A number of
important steps had already been taken, and his dele-
gation was particularly interested in the development
of co-operation between OPI and other United Nations
organs in the field. Annex 1 of the Advisory Commit-
tee's report (A/4170) pointed to various possibilities
for combining resources, and perhaps certain services,
which should be vigorously pursued in co-operation
with the specialized agencies.

19. His delegation hoped that the radio broadcasts
would be planned systematically on the results of
listener research. It also considered that the time had
come to approve the funds for the construction of a
television studio. He would like to state in conclusion
that his delegation was prepared to vote for a reso-
lution commending the Secretary~General for his
report, authorizing him to continue his activities along
the lines proposed and in the light of the discussion of
the Fifth Committee, and requesting him to present a
further report to the Committee at its next session.

Mr. Nosek (Czechoslovakia) took the Chair.

20. Mr. VENKATARAMAN (India) recalled the inter-
est his delegation had always taken in the public
information activities of the United Nations and its
misgivings confirmed by the report of the Committee
of Experts, regarding the results achieved and the
methods employed. The Secretary~-General's report
should be appraised in the light of the criteria set
forth in the last four preambular paragraphs of reso-
lution 1335 (XIII).

21. The first request made of the Secretary~General
had been effectively carried out, particularly as far as
the Press was concerned. Objective and factual infor-
mation had been made available to all the peoples of
the world through all appropriate media. Secondly, the
Secretary-General should give priority to the use of
media of information which ensured the maximum of
effectiveness at the lowest possible cost. The Indian
delegation noted with satisfaction that Headquarters
facilities for media representatives were to be
maintained at their present levels. I the number of

accredited correspondents increased, as the Secre-
tary-General anticipated (A /4122, para. 31), additional
facilities should be considered. His delegation was
glad to see that the existing facilities operated to the
satisfaction of the correspondents, who put them to
good use and served the interests of the United Nations
competently and loyally. The services and facilities
made available to information media not represented
at Headquarters were inadequate, but he would return
to that matter later.

22, The two other objectives of resolution 1335 (XIII)
were closely related and might be taken together in
analysing the Secretary-General's report. The issue
they raised was what steps had beentakento strengthen
field operations in line with the repeatedly stated
principle that the full co-operation of public and private
information media should be enlisted, special attention
being given to the needs of the less developed coun-
tries. The Secretary-General's report (A /4122, paras.
36 to 47) gave little reason to be satisfied with the
work done along those lines. It gave no indication of
the duties of the officers who would be posted to Geneva
and Washington, nor of the reasons which had led the
Secretary-General to give priority to strengthening
the staffs of those two centres. The report did not
describe how the increased allocation of $90,000 over
1958 expenditure was to be utilized in the various
services. The question of improving library facilities
in the centres was only "under consideration" and the
recommendation of the Committee of Experts on the
interchange of personnel between OPIandthe substan-
tive departments had escapedthe attention of the Secre=
tary~General. In addition, it was difficult to see why
the highly developed centres at Geneva and Washington
had been chosen for the task of strengthening co-
operation with non-governmental organizations in
view of the enormously difficult position of non-govern-
mental organizations in other areas.

23. With regard to the field programmes, India felt
that adequate attention had not been paid to the views
of the majority of members on the three editions of
the United Nations Review. The English version had
remained more or less the same; it was too luxurious
in presentation and too high in price. It should be
printed in a format more appropriate to its content
and more suitable for air transport and overseas dis-
tribution. His delegation wishedto reiterate the impor=
tance it attached to the annual appearance of the useful
reference work entitled Everyman's United Nations,
the latest English edition of which was dated1956.

24. With respect to the number and location of infor-
mation centres, he pointed out that General Assembly
resolution 1086 (XI) referred to the desirability of
establishing information centres in keeping with the
principle of regional and linguistic distribution and
recommended favourable attention to the establishment
of offices in new Member States. However, thirteen of
the twenty-seven centres and offices were in the
developed countries and only twenty-six out of the
fifty-seven officers employed inthe centres and offices
were assigned to the less developed areas. That situ=
ation was not satisfactory and the consensus of opinion
at the Fifth Committee's previous session hadclearly
been that new centres must be added, especially in
Asgia, the Middle East, Africa and Latin America, with-
out additional cost to the United Nations,

25. The Committee of Experts had recommended in
paragraphs 230 and 231 of its report the reorganization



80 General Assembly — Fourteenth Session — Fifth Committee

of the External Relations Division on aregional basis.
In his report, the Secretary-General said that "after
very searching exploration”, the changes suggestedby
the Committee of Experts had not provedfeasible, and
since it was a question which should be left entirely
to the Secretary-General's discretion, his delegation
would accept the Secretariat's decision inthat matter.
However, it attached great importance to the structure
of the External Relations Division because of its effect
on overseas work. Only through a regional structure
could the Office of Public Information keep fully in-
formed of the needs of the areas it served; and the
offices of the External Relations Division, like the
centre directors themselves, should have reasonable
competence in all aspects of their work. If the needs
of the different areas were not intimately understood,
the less developed regions would continue to be neg-
lected.

26. In the same way, attention should be drawnto the
need for proper geographical distribution, in regional
if not in national terms, of OPI officers at the policy-
making level. He did not meanto questionthe integrity
of the present officers; he merely wished to point out,
as the Committee of Experts had done, the need to
ensure that the membership of the OPI staff should
represent the major cultural areas of the world.

27. Despite the very explicit recommendations of the
Committee of Experts on films in paragraphs 272 to
274 of its report, the film unit had produced during
the year a ninety-minute documentary entitled "Power
Among Men", the commercial exploitation of which
was not likely to cover the production costs, to which
must naturally be added staff remuneration andtravel
expenses. The whole film programme was miscon=
ceived, and his delegation could not approve the cost
estimates unless it received assurances that the funds
would be used exclusively to produce films on United
Nations activities and educational filmstrips. Further-
more, in view of the limited area that a television
studio would serve and of the costs involved, his dele-
gation was reluctant, for the time being, to approve
the allocations requested for that purpose.

28. The Indian delegation would support any proposal
for the establishment of an advisory committee on
public information to assist OPI in implementing the
recommendations of the Committee of Experts., That
would relieve the Fifth Committee of the yearly, time-
consuming task of examining OPI's activities. With
respect to the training and fellowship programmes,
he would like to know what percentage of trainees came
from under-developed countries and what steps were
taken to consult Governments and non-governmental
organizations on the choice of trainees.

29. The report submitted to the Fifth Committee
undoubtedly indicated that some progress had been
made. Nevertheless it could not be regarded as more
than an interim report which should be followed by
further reports on the progress achieved in carrying
out the recommendations on OPI activities.

30. Mr. RYAN (Australia) drew the Committee's
attention to paragraphs 14 and 15 of the Secretary-
General's report in which it was pointed out that
increases in such "uncontrollable" costs as progres-
sive salary increments, cost of living allowances,
common staff costs and other rate increases hadbeen
responsible for the steady increase in expenses which
had occurred in recent years. Since salary, wage and

related staff costs comprised upwards of 70 per cent
of OPI expenditure, the question arose whether the
establishment of a rigid fixed ceiling did not require
a reduction of staff instead of stabilization of pro-
fessional staff at the current level, as proposed in
the Secretary-General's programme,

31. The Australian delegation would therefore like to
be informed of the administrative and financial impli-
cations of the two proposals submitted to the Committee
before it took a final position. Moreover, it was not
quite clear how they were to be implemented. Hence,
he would put the following two questions to the repre-
sentative of the Secretary-General: was it to be
assumed that, ifthe increase in costs of previous years
were to continue, stabilization at the current level of
professional staff employed in public information
activities would entail an increase in expenses? Could
the ceiling proposed by the USSR and the United King-
dom be applied without a reduction of staff and, if so,
under what other headings could the necessary reduc-
tion in costs be achieved?

32. Television programmes of United Nations activi-
ties in areas other than North America had expanded
considerably in recent years. In view of that important
development, the Australian delegation would like to
know how much it would cost at present to build a
television studio and how long it would take. Moreover,
in connexion with an observation by the Secretary-
General (A/4122. para. 30, last sentence), it would also
like to have a comparative estimate of the income and
expenditure which the operation of such a studio would
imply.

33. Mr., SZITA (Hungary) observed that OPI's finan-
cial position had not improved since the previous
session. On the contrary, its expenses had increased
steadily and the Secretary-General was requesting
$5.4 million for 1960. In 1956 the Fifth Committee had
approved for 1957, 1958 and 1959 the $4.5 million
ceiling proposed by the Advisory Committee and
accepted by the Committee of Experts. The Hungarian
delegation would therefore support the USSR draft
resolution (A/C.5/L.573) because it felt that the
measures proposed by the Secretary-General were
inadequate. As pointed out by the Advisory Committee
(A/4170, para. 54), those proposals represenied at
best a possible slowing down of further increases of
expenditure on public information activities. The
recommendations made by the experts and various
proposals submitted during the debate had produced
numerous specific suggestions which should make it
possible to remain within the $4.5 million ceiling.

34. While he did not wish to go into details, he would
merely request that, generally speaking, Member
States should be given a more active role for, as
pointed out by the Experts, the United Nations infor-
mation programme could only supplement the efforts
of Governments. Duplication should be avoided and
information activities expanded in countries which
required assistance and not inthose which had national
services capable of disseminating information on the
United Nations.

35. It was unfortunate that the recommendations of
the Experts concerning radio broadcasts had not been
applied. The Committee of Experts had expressed a
doubt whether the present level of intensity of broad-
casts and their reception qualities produced results
commensurate with the financial outlay and the effort



723rd meeting—19 October 1959 81

of the staff members. The Committee of Experts had
further recommended that OPI should ascertain the
desires of the Member States in the matter of unre-
layed broadcasts. For example, unrelayed broadcasts
in the Hungarian language did not reach the Hungarian
public. Moreover, they were broadcast by an organi=-
zation notorious for its dissemination of propaganda
hostile to the Hungarian people—which hardly served
to enhance the prestige ofthe United Nations. Further-
more, the Hungarian Government had never been con-
sulted regarding those broadcasts. Much importance
was attached by Hungary to the public being adequately
informed about United Nations affairs. The corre-
spondent of the Hungarian Radio broadcasted daily
from United Nations Headquarters during General
Assembly sessions andthe Government was now study=-
ing the possibility of ensuringthat the Hungarian Radio
broadcasted news from Headquarters throughout the
year.

36. The fact that the principle of geographical dis-
tribution was not properly applied was regrettable.
Since that point was the subject of a separate agenda
item he would not dwell on it but would merely request
that the staff of information centres shouldbe recruited
from among persons who had a perfect knowledge of
the culture and language of the countries to which they
were assigned, and preferably persons who were
nationals of the countries concerned. Moreover, there
would be financial advantages to such a policy since
it would entail savings in home leave travel costs.

37. Generally speaking, the Hungarian delegation
believed that a fixed ceiling of $4.5 million would con-
tribute greatly to the stabilization of the budget.

38. Mr. KATZIN (Acting Head of the Office of Public
Information), replying to the questions raised by the
Japanese representative at the 722nd meeting, said
that the thirty-nine General Service employees re-
ferred to were not in excess of the established posts
in OPI but were engaged in revenue-producing services
in the Sales and Circulation Section and the Visitor's
Service (part D of the budget).

39. The Japanese representative had asked why the
higher ranking personnel of OPI had to be nationals of
countries other than Asia, Africa and Latin America.
The Secretary~General had stated his position on the
question of the geographical distribution of staff, which
was a matter of over-all staff policy where due con-
sideration had to be given to the acquired rights of
staff members of proven competence. Due regard would
be given to the principle of geographical distribution
when the vacant post of Under-Secretary was filled.

40. With reference to the criteria governing the size
of information centres, he said that until 1955 the
General Assembly had determined the number of staff
assigned to the various centres, whichwere classified
in three groups according as they were staffed by six,
four or two staff members. In 1955 the General Assem-~
bly had authorized the Secretary~General to modify
those criteria on the basis of the needs of each centre.

41. Referring to the six films produced by OPI, he
said that the film "Exposure" (ten minutes) on refugees
had been produced for the World Refugee Year at an
approximate cost of $9,000, $6,000 of which had been
provided by the United Nations and $3,000 by World
Refugee Year funds. Distribution costs wouldbe borne
by the national committees for World Refugee Year;
up to the present seventy prints had been ordered.

The film "In Our Hands" (ten minutes), commemorating
the fortieth anniversary of the founding of the Inter-
national Labour Organisation, had cost $9,000, of which
the United Nations had provided $3,000 and the ILO
$6,000.

42, A popular science film (thirty minutes) on the
peaceful uses of atomic energy was in production,
Initial costs in 1959 would amount to $14,000, $5,000
of which would be provided by the United Nations and
$9,000 by IAEA. The additional expenses incurred in
1960 would depend upon the additional financial con-
tributions which the participating agencies might wish
to make.

43. The thirty-minute "Water Film" would be pro-
duced jointly with WHO in 1959-1960 at a cost of
$60,000, $20,000 of which had been pledged by the
United Nations and interested agencies.

44, A revised edition of "Workshop for Peace" (thirty
minutes), originally produced in 1952, was in pro-
duction. The purpose of the film was to explain the
functions of the United Nations and its various bodies;
it would cost between $5,000 and $6,000.

45. Lastly, OPI was preparing a series of four films
for television and group showings, on the activities of
United Nations family in Asia, withparticular emphasis
on the work of ECAFE. The films would be produced
in collaboration with the specialized agencies sub-
stantively and financially, and would utilize local pro-
duction facilities to the extent that they were available,
They were expected to involve an expenditure of
$15,000 in 1959 and $45,000 in 1960.

46. The figures given were exclusive of overhead
expenses and salaries of staff members. It was diffi-
cult to establish precisely the number of working hours
spent by each staff member on the production of each
film since the staff worked on a number of films simul-
taneously.

47. Replying to the representatives who hadreferred
to the film "Power Among Men", he said that work on
the film had begun in 1958 at the request of the Under-
Secretary for Public Information, and had been com-
pleted in March 1959, The sum of $40,000 which the
film had already earned from distribution over tele-
vision networks should be deducted from the production
cost of $53,000. The film had been exhibitedin a large
number of countries and had been awarded prizes in
the United States, and at Venice and in Moscow. If had
been or would be shown commercially in the United
States, Canada, New Zealand and the United Kingdom.

48. Reverting to the questions raised bythe Japanese
representative, he furnished particulars regardingthe
financing of the publication of pamphlets written or
adapted in the field. Up to the present time the infor-
mation centres had mainly requested local language
editions of basic information publications produced at
Headquarters. During the first nine months of 1959,
some $80,000 had been spent on the production of
pamphlets for the centres, or 80 per cent of total OPI
printing costs for the period (exclusive of the three
editions of the United Nations Review, the United
Nations Yearbook and Everyman's United Nations).
Forty-six languages were representedin the pamphlets
produced in 1959. As the Secretary~General had indi-
cated in his report, the centres would, within their
budgetary possibilities, turn their attention to the pro-
duction of pamphlets written or adapted in the field to




82 General Assembly — Fourteenth Session — Fifth Committee

supplement their editions of the basic publications;the
Secretary-General envisaged an outlay of $20,000 to
$25,000 for that purpose.

49. Acting on the recommendations of the experts,
the Secretary-General had increased the number of
fellowships to thirty-one (as compared with seven in
1959). The fellowship-holders were selected by a com-
mittee on the basis of recommendations received from
information centres and technical assistance resident
representatives. The fellowship programme had start-

ed on 16 October 1959 and would last six weeks. The
student interne programme had been reduced from
eight to six weeks; thirty students from as many coun-
tries had taken part in the programme (from 24 July
to 3 September 1959). The Civil Servant Interne Pro-
gramme had been reduced by two weeks; eighteen
civil servants from eighteen different countries had
spent six weeks at Headquarters between 5 June and
16 July 1959.

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.m.

Litho in U.N,

77501-January 1960-2,025



